
J 

,.. United Nations Nations Unies 

EQONOMIC 
AND 

CONS ElL 
ECONOMIQUE 
ET SOCIAL 

ORIGINAL: E!\GLISR 

srCIAL COUNCIL 

CONTENTS: 

COMMISSION ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN 
' < 

" TRIP.D SESSION 

SUMttJ..RY RECORD OF 'IEE FIFTY -SIXTH MRETDm 
Held at Beirut, Lebanon, 

on Thursday, 31 h :.J.:cch 1949, at 3 p.m. 

1. Means of influencing public opinion. · 

2. Reports from the Secretary-General on pertinent aspects 

of the work of United Nations Commissions and Counci~s, 

anQ of the ILO, UNESCO, WHO, an4 FAO, and from ,regional 

and inter-goverr®ental organizations specializing in 

questions relating to vromen r s rights; and relations 

1vith the foregoing bodies. 

Chairman: Mrs.- Marie Helene lefaucheux France 

Members: Mrs. Elsie Frances Byth Australia 

Dr. Cecelia Sieu-Ling Zung China 

Mrs. Bodil Begtrup Denmark 

Mrs. Lina P. Tsaldaris Greece 

Mrs. Fortuna Andre Guery Haiti 

Mrs. Lakshmi Nandan .Menon India . 

Any corrections of this record should be submitted in writing, in 

either of the working languages (English or French)) and within two 
I . . 

vrorking days, to Mr. E. Delavenay, Director, OfficialRe.cords Division, 

Boom F-852 ,' Lake Success. Corrections should be accompanied by or 

incorporated ln a letter, on headed notepaper, bearing the appropriate 

symbol number and enclosed in an enveloiJe marked ~ "Urgent". Corrections 

can be dealt with more speedily by the services poncerned if delegations 

\dll be good enough also· to incorporate them in a mimeographed copy of · 

the record. 

, ( 

i 
i 



E/CN .6/SR 56 
Page 2 

Members (Continued): Mrs. Amalia C. de Castillo Ledon 

Miss Marcelle Abse 

Mrs. Mihri Pektas 

Miss Mary Sutherland 

Mrs. Elizieveta Popova 

Miss Dorothy Kenyon 

Mrs. Isabel Urdaneta 

Representatives from Specialized Agencies: 

Mrs, Mildred Fe.irchild-Woodbury 

Miss Jeanne R. Chaton 

Representatives from Inter-Governmental Organizations: 

Miss Minerva Bernardino 

Mexico 

Syria 

Turkey 

United Kingdqm _ 

USSR 

USA 

Venezuela 

International 
labour 
Organization 

1Th1ESCO 

InterwAmerican 
Commission of 
Women 

Consultants from Non-Governmental Organizations (Category A): 

Secretariat: 

Mrs. Marie Couette 'WFTU 

Miss Nina Trad 

M.rs. Amanda Labarca 

Mr. Edward Lalrson 

Mrs. Claude Day 

World Federation 
of United Nations 
Associations 

Chief·of the 
Section on the 
Status of Women 

Secretary 



E/CN. 6/SR ~56 
· Pege 3 · 

1. MEANS OF INFLUENCING PUBLIC OPINION: Cohtinuation ·of discussi·'Jn. 

(.Item 12 of the egenda). j 

Drart resolution ~ro~osed by the Re~resentative of Syria (E/CN.6/117) _ · 

Miss ABSE (dyria) introduce~· a resolution (E/CN.6/117) which 

she ·pro-posed should be amended to read: 
/ ' 

"Requests the Secretary-General to recommend to States Members 

of the United Nations the preparation of biographies .of women 

remarkable for their thoughts or actions 'in their res-pective 

countries; and to undertake, under the auspices of the 

United Nations, tl1e -publication and dissemination of these 

biogra-phies by every available means!'. 

The draft resolution, as amended, as ado~ted by 7 votes to none 

-with two abstentions. 

2. REPORTS FROM THE SECRETARY-GENERAL ON P:ERTINENT /IBPECTS OF THE WORK 

OF UNITED NATIONS COMMISS~ONS AND COUNCilS, AND OF THE ILO, UNESCO, WHO, 

AND FAO, AND FROM REGIONAL AND INTER-GOVERNME~AL ORGANIZATIONS 

SPECIALIZING IN QUESTIOI\TS RELATING TO WOMEN'S RIGETS; .AND RELATIONS 

WITH THE FOREGOING BODIES. (Item 13 of the sgenda). 

Mrs. I.ABARCA (Representative of" the Seoretery-Genural) said_ 

that most of the ~uestions referred to under item 13 had already been 

discussed in connexion with other items on the agenda. Statements had 

been pres~nted by Representatives of the ILO, UNESCO, and by the 

Inter-American Commission of Women; and the Resolutions of ECOSOC 

showed which of the Commission 1 s recommendations had been accepted. 

The Commission had also received document E/CN.6/95, summarizing the 

work of the Social Commission on the question of traffic in women and 

children. 

There remained for consideration the draft resolution submitted 

by the United States Representative, concerning relations with WHO. 

Draft resolution submitted by the Re~resentative of the United States 

- of America (Document E/CN. 6/109). 

Miss KENYON (United States of A~erica), in introducing her 

resolution, regretted that a Represent.ati-ve of WHO hac1'- not attended the 

present session, and that no report on the activ~ties of the Health 

OrgeJtization had been received. Referring to the deplorable health 

conditions in meny parts of the worl,d as a result of the war, she 

stressed- the need for doctors and nUrses, in particular of nurses of 

/whiph there 

/ 

I 



E/CN. 6/SR 56 
Pe.ge 4 

which there Wt'J3 a severe shortEge. The duty of caring for the sick 

was the birthright of women. She cited the names of famous women 

who had -played an outstanding role in the history of doctoring end 

nursing in the United States and in other countries. The International 
___ ....... _ 

Council of Nurses, set up i~ 1899, was the first body of women to form 

an international professional group. It therefore seemed a-ppropriate, 
' because of the gre at significance of,nursing to all women, that the 

Commission ·on the Status of Women should call u-pon WHO to take action 
J 

in order to encourege the recruitment of nurses, to increase scholarships 

and, in general, to stress the -p&amount importence of the nursing pro-

fession in 9onnexion with its programL~e on world health. 

those grounds that she had submitted the resolution. 

It was on 

Mrs. MENON (India) warmly sup-ported the proposal; the 

groying shortt'se of nurses, if not rectified, would lead to difficulties 

in the ap-plication of plans and progra:nmes for health development. In 

India, as in many other countries, >-rhile there seemed to be no trouble 

in regard to the availability of doctors, there were u~told difficulties 

in recruiting the requisite number ,of nnrses. The reasons were not hard 

to find. Women with financial meens were able to obtain higher educa-

tion, and did not easily take to nursing, whereas women who had a bent 

for nursing were not given the necessary facilities to enter the pro-

fession. The women's orgenizations of India had formally re~ommended 

the grent of stipends to women both before end . after joining training 

courses in nursing. Women,must be granted facilities for higher 

education so that the· nursing profession would be recognized as one of 

the libel"al professions. 

Regulations in regard to salary end conditions of work were also 

essential in order to mitigate tpe enormous strain imposed by a noble 
., ' 

profession which reduced human suffering, end which should not be 

allowed to f all in disrepute. 

Mrs. PEKT.A.S (Turkey) thanked Miss Kenyon for having raised 

a question of -paramount importence. In Turkey, there were a great 

number of women doctors, in particular, gyneacologists and pediatricians. 
' ' 

The demand for nurses was, however, greater then the supply. She 

described the nursing schools in Turkey conducted under the auspices of 

the Red Crescent, the Department of National Defence, and a training 

/school s-pecialized 



E/CN. 6/SR 56 
Page 5 ·· 

, school s-pecialized in the nursing of sick children at the American 

Hospitel in Istanbul. 

Mrs. POPOVA (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) expressed 

suririse at the manner in which the question had been introduced by 

the United States Representative. The item vras not included in the 

egend~, yet a draft resolution had been submitted in the name, as it 

vrere, of WHO, which had not been represented at the session. How woo 

it possible to approve a programme on which nothing was known, except 

on the basis of a ':few unconvincing and insufficiently .. developed remarks? 

Such a procedure had not been followed by r:m:y organ of the United Nations. 
~ ""'v 

It would be unwise and out of order, in the absence of a representative 

of WHO, to take a decision such as that contaiiled in the draft resolution. 

The Soviet Union did not require the help of WHQ. During the le~t 

war, the lives of millions of soldiers had been sa~ed by the heroic 

service of Russian ~vomen. As doctors and nurses they had given valuable 

support to the Red Army, which was thus enabled to be the first to repel 

the Nazi i:Q.vader. The Soviet Union had many schools for the training of. 

doctors and nurses, who had organized a vast movement for the collection 

of' blood tplasma for soldiers, thereby saving endless lives. · 

She felt that the draft resolution had not beeri carefully prepared.' 

Action on such matters should be determined by the individual countries. 

Mrs. FAIRCHILD-WOODBURY (ILO), speaking unofficially, 

informed the Commiss~on of a private conversation she had had with the 

head of the Maternal and Child Welfare Division of WHO, in connexion 

with the -possible collaboration of ILO in the field of nursing, end the 

develo-pment of greater training facilities. Mrs. Fairchild had also 

raised the question, referred to by Mrs. Memon, of the ooed for the 

adjustment of salarie's, conditions of employment, end so for.th. 

A~though the conversation had been entirely at the Secretariat level, 

she felt that WHO would have no objection to her reporting it, especially 

because the resolution merely expressed interest and a hope that the 

present shortage of nurses might be included among :pressing nerds for 

health -priorities. 

Mrs. TSALDARIS (Greece) felt that the resolution was of' great 
. I 

inrportance and, if adopt~d and applied, would greatly · increase the 

ossibility of making good the shortage. of doctors end nurses, end enable :p 



E/CN.6/SR 56 
Pe.ge 6 

women to enter the profession in larger numbers and obtain greater 

experience and training. 

Greece was not only the cradle of medical science, but had 

orig:rnated the tradition of visiting nurses. She gave a picture of 

training courses in all aspects of nursing available under the 

Red Cross and other organizations. She emphasized the unstinted 

help of nurses during the difficult years of 1940 and 1941, when, 

Greece had confronted the invading Fascist troops, thereby helping 

to give the Soviet Union time to withstand the Nazi incursion. 

She supported the United States resolution beceuse of the 

important contrib~tion made by nurses to the welfare of humanity. She 

also expressed appreciation to all foreign doctors and nurses who had 

assisted Greece during the difficult years her country had passed, and 

was still passing, through. 

Miss SUTHERLAND (United Kingdom) welcomed the resolution on 

relations with 'HHO, which ca.lled attention to one of the most serious 

of health problems. · The programme of no other Specialized Agency had 

been read and understood with greater interest by women than that of 

'HHO, in those activities her Government was fully associated, not on 

account of any benefits which might accrue but because the United Kingdom 

might afford a valuable contribution. She recalled that the International 
' I 

Council of Nurses was celebrating its 50th Armiversary this year, and 

would be able to make effective contribution to the work of 'HHO. 

Referring to the statement by Mrs. Labarca, she had duly received 

document E/CN.6/95, summarizing the work of the Social Commission in 

ccrnexion with traffic in women and children, but regretted that no 

further documentation was available in connection with the request for 

information on other aspects of the Social Commission's work relating 

to women's rights end interests. For example, it was essential for the 

present Commission to discuss the draft Convention on Traffic in Women 

and Children in order to be satisfied that no discri~inatiori egainst 

women was contained in the document. 

Mrs. LAB.ARCA (Representative or the Secretary-General) said 

that all the relevant documents had been sent to the delegations in 

New York for tr'ansmission to the representatives of the various govern

ments and that it had not been possible to bring each of these documents 
. ' 

to Beirut. 

/Mrs. GUERY 



E/CN. 6/SR 56 
Page 7 

Mrs. GUERY (Haiti), in supporting the resolution, pointed 

out that the nursing pr~fession had been consistently under-rated, and 
\ 

nurses under-remunerated. Although ~ school for turning out qualified 

nurses had been in existence for a good many years in: He..iti, the 'pro- _ 

fession was badly paid and many nurses had to act ·as midwives to 

complete their earning and gain a satisfactory livelihood. Scholarships 

should be granted for study in the United States o~ America, where · 

nursing stood · at a high level. } 

Mrs. COUETTE (WFTU) said that the question was one of the 

most. important before the Commission and deserved more prominence on 

the agenda. The protection of health, in particular that of mothers, 

should be given special attention, since childlen and humanity suffered 

as a result. The task should not be entrusted to WHO alone, but 
I 

governments should be pressed to find a solution to the rroblem. 

The training of nurses had been widely neglected, and the profession 

under-estimated. Infant mortality was highest in those countries where 

women suffered the most, and where / the shortage of nurses was singularly 

acute. She regretted that the Commission had not envisaged a wider 

enquiry. . .. -·· 

Mrs. IBRAHIM (International Democratic Federation of Women) 

-vras surprised that relations with WHO had found a place on the agenda. 

In considering the protection of the health of populations, the first 

concern of the Commission should be measures for raising the standard 

of living and not questions such as the funtions of specialized 

agencies, distribution of food through the Red Cross, the granting of 

scholarships, etc. 

Conditions of living, especially for women in countries devastated 

by the war and in dependent territories, wer,e deplorable. 
/ ~ ' 

The CHAIRMAN interrupted Mrs. Ibrahim to request her to 

confine ·her observat.ions to the item of the' agenda tinder discussion, 

i.e. relations with WHO. 

Mrs. IBRAHIM, continuing, said the object of her intervention 

WeJ3 to exp:r::ess the opinion that the Commission should give more careful 

study to the underlying conditions responsible for the state of health 

of the peoples before considering the funct:.ion. of WHO. 

'must be attacked from the roots. 

The trouble 

\ 



E/CN.6/SR )6 
Pege 8 , 

""' The CHAIRMAN, referring to the surpris e expressed by the 

Soviet Union Representative end the Representative of the Intern t· 
1 a 1~~ 

Democratic Federation of Women in connexicn with the discussion, s~.icl 
the agenda included en item on ~e-ports fr~m end relations with 

specialized egencies, including WHO, in regard to which a resolution 

had been submitted by the United States Re-presentati-ve. She could 

not see that the Commission had deviated from the egenda or f ailed 

to study with sufficient care the subJects on the egenda. 

She called upon the Representative of the Government of Lebanon 
I J 

Mrs. Harfouche, to address the Commission on items 11 and 13. 

V~s. HARFOUCHE (Representative of the Government of Lebanon) 

speaking on item 13 of the agenda, .,referred to the United States 

resvlution . on co-ordination ·pith WHO (E/C:N. 6/109). The need in 
lebanon for nursing, ·and especially -public health nursing, was very 

great; lebanon wa9 endeavouring to set' up public health services and 

would have need for trained -pe~sonnel and expert advice. Valuabl e 

work was being done in this field by WHO, which had allotted l l/2 

million dollars in its budget for fellowshi-ps and training. It had 

provided great assistance in lebanon during the cholera outbreak in 

1947, and had lately started a -programme of BCG vaccination. 

lf~s. Harfouche expressed her Committee's a~-preciation for the resolution 

presented by the United States Representative~ which was motivated, she 

felt sure, not by the needs of that country, but out of consideration 

for the needs of the world as a whole and especially those of 

underdevelcped countries. 

Speaking on item 11 of the egenda, .V.II's. Harfouche assured the 

n:embers of the Commission that, both by their discussions end by the 

influence they h~d exercised on the different individuals and grou~s 

with which they had come in contact, they had largely fulfilled the 

hopes of the lebanese Government in extending its invitation to the 

Commission to meet at Beirut. 

She referred to the resolution adopted by the Commission at its 

second session, calling for a regional conference at Beirut, 

simulteneously with the third session of the Commission. The 

Leb~ese Committee of Women had been set up to secure the collabor ~tion 
· t in of the non-g0vernmente.l vrom_ en'~ orgt:nizations with the Governmen 

· . . th" y that the -planning the regional conference. It was hoped m ~s wa 
be stimule.ted· to build U'P -public o-pinion wo~en's organizations would 

/end to secure 



E/CN. 6/SR 56 
Pege 9 . 

end to secure the immediate putting into effect by the Government of 

the resolutions of the conference. 

The egenda of the conference was mainly based on the resolutions 

of the Commission during its last tvTo sessions and ~ts present dis

cussions. . Its progremme was (a) to study those resolutions end 

decide which it would make Hs o-vm, and (b) to consider vT ays end 

meens of putting them into effect. It was appropriate that the 

resolutions of the 2rid end 3rd sessions of the Commiss'ion had dealt 

not only with equality of rights for women in political end economic 

matters, but also '<lith social matters. 

:People in the lebenon believed that the fOi.!l_il'y was the basic unit 

cf society. That wes consideration of the Committee in adopting the 

resolutions which would be submitted to the lebanese Government at a 

general \[leeting on April 4th. ?t had been felt that the resolutions 

should be sent to the government -- just as those of the Commission 

vrere sent ' to Member St ates -- as a means of securing effective 

n:ee.sures for their implementaticn es soon as possible. 

The C!HA1RMAN thenked Mrs. Harfouche for her statement and 

e.sked those members vlho 'dished to reply to confine their remarks to 

that part of the statement relating to item 13. The points which 

referred to regional conferences end non-governmental organizations 

vould be discussed at the next meeting. 

Mrs. POPOVA (union of Soviet Socialist Republics) esked two 

questions: First, why had· the Chairman, without prev_iously consulting 

the Commission, allowed a consultant to speak without limitation of 

time; ivhen other consultants had been limited to five minutes? 
s ' \ i 
econdly, would Mrs. Harfouche explain what WHO had done to mprove 

the 'POsition of working 1wmen in the Lebanon. 

The CHAIRMAN-replied that the Commission was entitled to hear 

t.ny RelJ:resentative of a State Member of the United Nations. Mrs. 

Herfouche, being the Representative of the lebanon, was not in the same 
bOS iti' . • t • · en ffi a Representative of a non-governmental orgeruza ~on. 

The United States resolution on ~a-ordination with WHO was ado-pted 
by 11 
~ 

The meetinG rose at 5.15 -p.m. \ 




